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MONTGOMERY COUNTY HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION 

STAFF REPORT 

Address: 13910 Lewisdale Rd., Clarksburg Meeting Date: 6/12/2019 

Resource: Master Plan Site #10/52 Report Date: 6/5/2019 

Charles Browning Farm 

Applicant: M-NCPPC Public Notice: 5/29/2019 

Montgomery Parks

Review: HAWP Tax Credit: n/a 

Case Number: 10/52-19A Staff: Dan Bruechert 

Proposal: Roof Replacement 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends the HPC approve the HAWP application. 

ARCHITECTURAL DESCRIPTION 

SIGNIFICANCE: Individially Listed Master Plan Site #10/52 (Charles Browning Farm) 

STYLE: Folk Victorian 

DATE: c.1850 w/ later additions

From Places from the Past: 

The Charles Browning farmstead sites in a low valley overlooked by Sugarloaf Mountain, 

adjacent to the Little Bennett Golf Course.  Charles Browning built the house, probably soon 

after he and his father Perry Browning bought the land in 1849.  The original section was likely a 

three-bay, center entrance structure, now the west wing (right).  The west external chimney with 

stone base has a fireplace only on the first level and a freestanding brick stack on the second 

level.  In the later 1800s, the Browning family expanded the house to its present for with rea ell, 

east wing, and full-width porch.  Considering the simple, folk form of the house, interior details 

are surprisingly sophisticated with elegant mantels and scrolled stair ends. The latter bear 

similarity with the Ziegler House.  A 1 ½-story kitchen building has board and batten siding and 

an externa chimney.  A bank barn has round-arched louvered windows.  Other early outbuildings 

include a smokehouse, spring house, and double corncrib.  In 1919, Ernest Mullican bought the 

farm, adding a concrete block dairy barn and milk house. 
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Figure 1: The Charles Browning farm is now located in the middle of the Little Bennett Golf Course.

PROPOSAL 

The applicant proposes to replace the farmhouse roof. 

APPLICABLE GUIDELINES 

Proposed alterations to individual Master Plan Sites are reviewed under Montgomery County 

Code Chapter 24A (Chapter 24A) and the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for 

Rehabilitation.  Rehabilitation is defined as the act or process of making possible a compatible 

use for a property through repair, alterations, and additions while preserving those portions or 

features, which convey its historical, cultural, or architectural values. 

Montgomery County Code, Chapter 24A Historic Resources Preservation 

(b) The commission shall instruct the director to issue a permit, or issue a permit subject to

such conditions as are found to be necessary to insure conformity with the purposes and

requirements of this chapter, if it finds that:

(1) The proposal will not substantially alter the exterior features of an historic site or

historic resource within an historic district; or

(2) The proposal is compatible in character and nature with the historical,

archeological, architectural or cultural features of the historic site or the historic district in

which an historic resource is located and would not be detrimental thereto or to the
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achievement of the purposes of this chapter; 

Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for Rehabilitation 

2. The historic character of a property will be retained and preserved.  The removal of

distinctive materials or alteration of features, space and spatial relationships that

characterize a property will be avoided.

5. Distinctive materials, features, finishes and construction techniques or examples of

craftsmanship that characterize a property will be preserved.

9. New additions, exterior alterations, or related new construction will not destroy historic

materials, features, and spatial relationships that characterize the property.  The new work

shall be differentiated from the old and will be compatible with the historic materials,

features, size, scale and proportions, and massing to protect the integrity of the property

and its environment.

10. New additions and adjacent or related new construction will be undertaken in such a

manner that, if removed in the future, the essential form and integrity of the historic

property and its environment would be unimpaired.

STAFF DISCUSSION 

The applicant proposes to remove the existing, failing, standing seam metal roof and replace it 

with a copper metal roof.  Staff finds that this roof, while a higher quality than the historic tin or 

galvanized roof, is an appropriate material and supports approval of this HAWP. 

The existing standing seam metal roof is failing and has deteriorated beyond repair.  Staff finds 

that the removal of this roof is appropriate under Standard 2. 

The proposed roof is a 1” (one-inch) double lock standing seam roof in copper.  The proposed 

copper roof is a significantly higher quality than the standing seam metal roof.  The advantages of 

the copper roof are many, including less cyclical maintenance, the new roof will not rust or 

corrode, and will more closely match the profile of the existing roof. None of these advantages 

would be the case with a new roof system.  The copper’s highly reflective appearance will dull to a 

green patina which will create an appearance more in keeping with the dull painted surface 

currently on the roof. 

Staff finds that the proposed roof is an appropriate material, design, and finish to be compatible 

with the historic house while retaining the historic character (per 24A-8(b)(2) and Standard 2).  

Staff recommends approval of this HAWP. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the Commission approve the HAWP application; as being consistent with 

Chapter 24A-8 and the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for Rehabilitation; and with the 

general condition applicable to all Historic Area Work Permits that the applicant will present 3 

permit sets of drawings to HPC staff for review and stamping prior to submission for 

permits (if applicable).  After issuance of the Montgomery County Department of Permitting 
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Services (DPS) permit, the applicant will arrange for a field inspection by calling the DPS Field 

Services Office at 240-777-6370 prior to commencement of work and not more than two weeks 

following completion of work.  
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